
 

 

 

 
Meeting 
 

Kings Barton Forum 
 

Date and Time 
 

Tuesday, 21st January, 2020 at 6.30 pm. 

Venue 
 

Walton Suite, Guildhall, Winchester 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

1.   Apologies  
 To record the names of apologies given and deputy members who are 

attending the meeting in place of appointed Members (where appropriate). 
 

2.   Disclosures of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in 

matters to be discussed. 
Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare 
disclosable pecuniary interests, personal and/or prejudicial interests 
in accordance with legislation and the Council’s Code of Conduct. 

 

3.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 10) 
 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 5th November 2019 

 

4.   Public Participation  
 To receive and note questions asked and statements made from members of 

the public on general matters of interest and/or matters relating to the work of 
the Forum. 
 

5.   Kings Barton Implementation Report and Verbal Update (Pages 11 - 46) 
 (Report Ref: KBF25) 

 
Lisa Kirkman 

Strategic Director: Resources and Monitoring Officer 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Members of the public are able to easily access all of the papers 
for this meeting by opening the QR Code reader on your phone 
or tablet. Hold your device over the QR Code below so that it's 
clearly visible within your screen and you will be redirected to the 
agenda pack. 

 
 
13 January 2020 
 
Agenda Contact: Matthew Watson mwatson@winchester.gov.uk 01962 848 317 
 
 
Barton Farm Forum 
 
Membership 
 
The Barton Farm Development Forum consists of the following voting members: 
 

 9 members of Winchester City Council,  
 

 2 members of Hampshire County Council, 
 

 1 member of Headbourne Worthy Parish Council, 
 

 1 member of Littleton and Harestock Parish Council. 
 
 
Membership 
 
Cllr Rutter Winchester City Council 

Cllr Cunningham Winchester City Council 

Cllr Godfrey Winchester City Council 

Cllr Griffiths Winchester City Council 

Cllr Horrill Winchester City Council 

Cllr Learney Winchester City Council 

Cllr Porter Winchester City Council 

Cllr Prince Winchester City Council 

Cllr Warwick Hampshire County Council 

Cllr Tod Hampshire County Council 

Cllr Duncan Headbourne Worthy Parish Council 

Cllr Saunders Littleton & Harestock Parish Council 

 
 
In addition, the following are nominated deputies to the Forum: 
 
Cllr Hutchison (Winchester City Council) and Cllr Mather (Winchester City Council) 
 
 
 



Quorum 
 

The Forum will be quorate if five voting representatives are present.  
 

Method of Working and Voting Rights 
 

All representatives are expected to seek to reach conclusions by general consensus.  
Where any voting representative on the Forum requires a formal vote to be taken, 
this shall be on a show of hands by those voting representatives present and voting 
(the membership as set out above).   

 
Public Participation Procedure 
General 
 
1. There will be a period of 10 minutes maximum at the beginning of each Forum 
meeting when the Chairman will invite the public, including local interest groups, to 
raise any general matters of interest and/or matters relating to the work of the 
Forum.  Detailed matters related to agenda items will not be accepted at this point, 
as there will be an opportunity for these comments to be heard later in the meeting.  
As is the usual practice for general public participation, however, officers and 
Members may not be able to immediately respond at the meeting to points raised by 
the public where these relate to non-agenda items. 

 
Consideration of Individual Agenda Items 
 
2. After an officer has introduced an agenda item, the Chairman will invite public 
participation on matters relating to that agenda item.  At this point, a period of up to 
ten minutes (subject to extension at the Chairman’s discretion) will be allowed for 
public comments.  During this period, members of the public, including local interest 
groups, will be able to object, support or ask questions directly relating to the agenda 
item and contents of the officer report. 

 

3. An individual speaker will be limited to a maximum of three minutes per 
agenda item.  Where a number of members of the public wish to speak, they will be 
encouraged to agree the allocation of the maximum ten minute period for public 
participation.  The Democratic Services Officer will assist in this process before the 
start of the meeting.  The Chairman will retain a general discretion to manage the 
public speaking process, and may limit individual speakers to less than three 
minutes, or take other steps necessary in order to maximise public participation in an 
appropriate way.  The extension of the total 10 minutes limit allowed for the public to 
discuss an agenda item will be at the discretion of the Chairman. 

 

4. There will be no further opportunity for the public to comment on an agenda 
item once the period of public participation has ended, even if the prescribed period 
has not been reached.  The subsequent discussion, consideration and decision on 
the matter will then passed to Forum Members.  

 



5. Members and Officers will not provide an immediate response to public 
comments raised from the floor.  All comments and queries will be noted and the 
Chairman will invite Officers and/or Members to respond to specific points during the 
round table debate and discussion amongst Forum members that follows. 

 

6. Members of the public should wherever possible contact the Democratic 
Services Officer before the start of the meeting (preferably by telephone or email 
prior to the day of the meeting), so that as many people who wish to speak can be 
accommodated during the public participation sessions. 

 
Forum Debate and Vote 
 
7. The Chairman will subsequently invite questions and open the discussion and 
debate to all Members of the Forum and will invite officers and/or Members to 
respond to any public comments raised from the floor. Where appropriate, a vote will 
be taken to reach a formal recommendation on the agenda item. 

 
Filming and Broadcast Notification 
 
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the Council’s website. The 
meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules within the Council's 
Constitution for further information, which is available to view on the Council’s 
website. 
 
 
 
Disabled Access 
 
Disabled access is normally available, but please phone Democratic Services on 
01962 848 264 or email democracy@winchester.gov.uk to ensure that the necessary 
arrangements are in place. 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


1 
 

 
 

KINGS BARTON FORUM 
 

Tuesday, 5 November 2019 
Attendance: 
 

Councillors 
Rutter (Chair) 

 
Cllr Cunningham, Winchester City 
Council 
Cllr Horrill, Winchester City Council 
Cllr Learney, Winchester City Council  
 

Cllr Porter, Winchester City Council 
Cllr Prince, Winchester City Council 
Cllr Warwick, Hampshire County Council 
Cllr Tod, Hampshire County Council 

 
 
Apologies for Absence:  
 
Cllr Godfrey (Winchester City Council), Cllr Griffiths (Winchester City Council), 
Cllr Duncan (Headbourne Worthy Parish Council) and Cllr Saunders (Littleton & 
Harestock Parish Council) 
 
Officers in attendance 
 
Steve Tilbury, Strategic Director 
Christopher Hughes, Major Developments Team Leader 
 

 
1.    CHAIRPERSONS ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
The Chair thanked Members of the Forum and the Public for their attendance 
and welcomed Nicola Wells, Head teacher, Barton Farm Academy and Adrian 
Lee, Senior Technical Officer and Viv Hill, Senior Design and Planning Manager 
of CALA Homes to the meeting..  
 

2.    MINUTES  
 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 15 July 2019 

be approved and adopted. 
 

3.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
During public participation, Mike Toosey and Caterina Zucca (Chairman of the 
Kings Barton Residents’ Association) addressed the meeting on the following 
matters, as summarised below: 
 
In summary, Mr Toosey stated that he was concerned regarding the levels of 
mud and dust from the site and the impact this was having on resident’s 
properties and vehicles. It was acknowledged that CALA had endeavored to 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 
 

rectify this issue. However, further interventions to minimise dust and dirt on site 
were sought. In response, officers advised that the situation would continue to be 
monitored and with the recent installation of a cattle grid to the junction and road 
surfaces within the site anticipated to be down during the next six months, it was 
expected that dust would significantly reduce going forward. 
 
Prior to the meeting, the Kings Barton Residents Association had notified officers 
of the questions they intended to ask in respect of Report KBF24 below. 
 
Officers had consulted with colleagues at Winchester City Council, Hampshire 
County Council and CALA to provide initial responses to those questions. The 
key issues raised were summarised by Ms Zucca, together with the responses 
received, as set out below: 
 
(a) Measures to prevent non-residents parking in residential areas in 
 Phase 1A: 
 
 In response, the Strategic Director advised that although CALA had 
 some  power as private landowner to install signage, issue letters etc, 
 this would be limited until the roads were adopted when support could 
 be initiated for a Resident’s Parking Scheme to control and limit non 
 residents parking. A consultation process would be required   
 prior to implementation.  
  
(b) Provision of benches at the play park in Phase 1B: 
 
 A strategy had been agreed to install a number of items of street 
 furniture such as benches and litter bins to Phase 1B to coincide with 
 the opening of the play park. In addition, it was reported that the play 
 park was almost complete and ready to open. Safety checks had been 
 carried out. CALA would liaise with the Major Developments  Team 
 Leader on this matter. 
 
(c) Installation of public litter bins, primarily to be located in the play park 
 and at the Manley Road entrance to the development when litter 
 accumulates: 
 
 It was reported that primarily bins would be installed in the play park 
 and at the Manley Road entrance where litter accumulates in 
 ditches. 
 
(d) Maintenance update for footpaths along Andover Road and Andover 
 Road North (i.e. lighting, clearance of debris and leaves etc); 
 
 It was noted that a regular maintenance programme would be made 
 available of when and how often footpath clearance would occur. 
 
(e) Retention of the Manley Road Car Park: 
 
 CALA would discuss this matter further with the Council which needs to 
 be considered in light of the landscape approach. However, this area 

Page 6



3 
 

 
 

 could be looked as for a temporary community use on site. The 
 Strategic Director clarified that the Council would have no objection to 
 CALA  leaving this area as car parking for the time being. At adoption, 
 the Council would then need to explore future use and its commitments 
 further at this stage.   
 
(f) Once adopted, would streetlights be turned off at night in Phase 1B  and 
 confirmation that streetlights were still to be replaced by LED lights: 
 
 If adopted, HCC Highways would be responsible for street lighting. The 
 main link from the development was lighted throughout as this was the 
 main road into the City.  In respect of the use of LED lighting and 
 column alignment, Mr Hill clarified that street lighting was required to 
 meet HCC adoptable standards and that the alignment and location of 
 all lamp posts on site had been determined by HCC Highway 
 Engineers.  The Major Developments Team Leader stated that he was 
 happy to receive any concerns regarding lighting going forward. 
 
 The Strategic Director clarified that at this stage CALA could consider 
 an adjustment to lighting levels. The Major Developments Team 
 Leader advised that when planning consent was agreed, it was 
 confirmed that Phase 1A would use LED lighting and that it was 
 proposed to also change the lighting in Phase 1B to LED lights in due 
 course.  
 
(g) Progress update regarding the footpath linking Andover Road North to 
 the Harestock shops or will Henry Beaufort School retain the land for 
 future  outdoor space: 
 
 It was reported that there was no change to the position in respect of 
 Henry Beaufort School as this was deemed as a safeguarding risk by 
 the school. The Major Developments Team Leader clarified that other 
 routes could be investigated that may not be as direct but would be  safer. 
 These would be made available to the Forum and residents in due 
 course. 
  
(h) Update on the post of Community Development Worker. 
 
 The Strategic Director reported that the role would be advertised 
 shortly and that the Residents Association would be advised once the 
 advertisement had gone live.     
 
In conclusion, the Chair thanked members of the public for their contributions. It 
was agreed that all future questions submitted by the Kings Barton Resident’s 
Association, together with the responses received, be circulated to Members of 
the Forum in advance of the meeting.   
 

4.    PRESENTATION FROM THE HEAD TEACHER OF BARTON FARM 
ACADEMY  
(Presentation) 
 

Page 7



4 
 

 
 

The Forum received a presentation from Nicola Wells, Head teacher of Barton 
Farm Academy which was due to open in September 2020.  
 
The presentation provided an overview of the background and plans, the 
trustees and the ethos, vision and values of the new academy school. The 
school had been sponsored by the University Academy Trust which also offered 
invested experience and a wealth of teacher training, engagement with other 
aspects of the University and pupil access to their facilities. 
 
Ms Wells clarified that the academy school would open in September 2020 
initially with 30 spaces available for Year R children which would steadily 
increase year on year until it reached its total of 420 pupils ranging from Year R 
to Year 6 children in future.  
 
It was reported that the school build was on track and was due to be handed 
over in June 2020 to allow time for the school to be made ready in time to 
accommodate pupils in September.  
 
In response to questions, Ms Wells confirmed that admissions for 2020 would be 
part of the HCC admissions website portal and that she was working closely with 
the admissions team. The rationale for providing places for Year R initially was 
due to the school being built to meet demand for new school places and HCC 
had confirmed that there was adequate availability in the education system to 
accommodate movement of pupils in other year groups within existing schools. 
Staggered pupil intake was an approach regularly taken by new schools.   
 
Safe and appropriate walking routes for school pupils were in the process of 
being established and included routes along The Avenue and the hedge line 
along the North of the site.  
 
Mr Hill advised that the consideration of how to deliver this as a wider strategy 
would be brought forward to the next meeting of the Forum.  
 
Ms Wells stated that the recruitment of staff would commence once the total 
number of admissions had been confirmed which closes in January 2020 and 
the interview process would consist of a selection process where prospective 
employees would be required to demonstrate their commitment to support the 
vision and ethos of the school. 
 
In conclusion, the Chair thanked Ms Wells for her informative presentation and 
her attendance and contribution to the meeting.   
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
  That the presentation be noted 
 

5.    CALA HOMES - THE LOCAL CENTRE  
(Presentation) 
 
The Forum received a presentation from Viv Hill and Adrian Lee of CALA Homes 
which provided a progress update in respect of the local centre. 

Page 8



5 
 

 
 

 
The presentation set out details of the next stage of development in Phase 2B 
and Phase 2A (current live application) and included completion of The Avenue. 
 
The development was currently midway through Phase 2A to meet the trigger of 
650 dwellings and CALA would be supporting the opening of the Barton Farm 
Academy School as the next step. Mr Hill stated that the community centre and 
the food store were scheduled to come forward after 800 occupations and 1,000 
occupations respectively. 
 
The presentation referenced to the wider illustrative plan (revised plan circulated 
by the Major Developments Team Leader), the neighbourhood primary school, 
the design principles, the architecture approach, the masterplan, Gateway 
building, Pavilion buildings and special buildings.  
 
Following questions in respect of the matters raised during the presentation, Mr 
Hill and the Strategic Director responded accordingly, as set out below: 
 

 Mr Hill clarified the number of occupations required to bring forward the food 
store and the community centre and reported that The Avenue would be 
opened by 650 occupations which would then trigger the mixed uses. In 
respect of provisional dates for delivery, Mr Hill confirmed that Phase 2A was 
half complete and it was anticipated that completion would take a further two 
years to bring The Avenue into operation. Upon its opening a view would be 
taken but it was expected that Andover Road North would close at this stage.  

 

 Interest had been expressed by a number of supermarket operators in 
relation to the food store.  

 

 In respect of the Extra Care Scheme, the brief would be taken from that 
achieved at Chesil Lodge. It was noted that HCC had indicated their interest 
to see the extra care scheme on site progressed. 

 

 In respect of design parameters, Mr Hill emphasised that in accordance with 
new legislation, junctions and gateways would be developed and designed to 
adoptable standards. 

 

 Mr Hill advised that shared space would remain flexible to cater for all events. 
 

 It was reported that a time limit would be placed on car parking in the main 
place to prevent unauthorised parking on site and retail units would have a 
dedicated car parking allocation. 

 

 The Strategic Director advised the Forum that the option for a full scale Park 
and Ride to the north of Winchester was to be explored as part of the 
Winchester Movement Strategy. It had never been intended that the small 
scale Park and ride ‘light’ facility at Kings Barton would serve a strategic 
purpose due to the small amount of space available. If a full service park and 
ride site is eventually created to the north of Winchester then the function of 
the Kings Barton facility would be reviewed and if necessary amended to 
ensure that it is used in the best way.  

Page 9



6 
 

 
 

 
The Strategic Director emphasised that funding was available via the s106 
agreement to provide initial support for the bus services running through 
Kings Barton and serving the Park and Ride service which ensure that this 
can be delivered but eventually these would have to be commercially 
sustainable.   

 

 In respect of electric charging points on site, Mr Hill reported that vehicle 
charging points would be installed as required as part of the planning consent 
and any relevant changes to Building Regulations. For any full service park 
and ride site operated by the Council, the nature of the vehicles to be used to 
provide the bus service could be defined and controlled but the choices in 
relation to the commercial fleet were a matter for bus operators. 

 
In conclusion, the Chair thanked Mr Hill and Mr Lee for their informative 
presentation and their attendance and contribution to the meeting.   
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
  That the presentation be noted. 
 
 

6.    KINGS BARTON IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE REPORT  
(Report KBF24 refers) 
 
The Forum considered the Implementation update which summarised the latest 
progress and the key issues to be addressed at the Kings Barton development. 
 
The Major Developments Team Leader reported that Phase 1B of the 
development was complete with remaining highway and open space adoption to 
follow. Phase 1A was underway and progressing in a timely manner with a 
couple of occupations in place and the temporary sales office in situ.  
 
In respect of the implications of the seven year limit, officers clarified that a 
reserve matters application was submitted by 2 September 2019 and planning 
consent was secured to enable progress to proceed as planned. The centre was 
scheduled to be delivered within Phase 2B, via several different applications 
rather than one large application which would include the input of the Forum and 
the Kings Barton Resident’s Association.  
 
In response to Members questions, the Strategic Director emphasised that 
further detailed workshops and consultations would be carried out in due course 
in respect of the neighbourhood centre. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the report be noted. 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and concluded at 8.30 pm 
Chair 

Page 10



  
 

KBF25 
KINGS BARTON FORUM 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: KINGS BARTON IMPLEMENTATION REPORT 
 
21 JANUARY 2020 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR JACKIE PORTER CABINET 
MEMBER FOR BUILT ENVIRONMENT AND WELLBEING  

Contact Officer:  Christopher Hughes    Tel No: 01962 848 375  Email 
chughes@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  GENERAL 
 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

To provide the Forum with an update on progress at Kings Barton, the development 
process, and future works.   

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the content of the report be noted.   

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



  [KBF25] 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME  

1.1 Tackling the climate emergency and creating a greener district  

Kings Barton is located close to existing services, employment and education 
facilities making it possible for residents to take more journeys by foot, cycle 
or bus. 

1.2 Homes for all 

40% of the homes at the 2000 dwelling development at Kings Barton will be 
affordable, providing a wide range of opportunities to rent or buy in 
Winchester. 

1.3 Vibrant local economy 

2000 dwellings will provide opportunities for more young people to live and 
work in the district. The local centre in the development will also provide a 
range of business and employment opportunities. 

1.4 Living well 

Homes that are located close to services provide greater opportunities to 
encourage active travel amongst the population. 

1.5 Your services, your voice 

The increase in the number of homes will increase the council tax revenue for 
the City Council. 

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 None 

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 Provision of an update report as to the current implementation of the 
approved development at Kings Barton provides an important communication 
between the developer, City Council and local community. The report and 
appendices recognise the on-going nature of the planning process and 
importance for compliance with the planning permission and any resultant 
planning obligation agreements. 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS  

4.1 None 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

Page 12



  [KBF25] 
 

 

 

5.1 None  

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 None 

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 The City Council has declared a climate emergency and on December 23 
adopted a Carbon Neutrality Action Plan, committing it to reaching carbon 
neutrality buy 2024 and aiming to make the entire district carbon neutral by 
2030.   

7.2 The planning consent for King’s Barton cannot be amended but future phases 
of development can take account of emerging technologies and opportunities 
to reduce carbon emissions within the scope of the planning consent and 
Building Regulations. 
 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT 

8.1 The Council has a general equality duty under s149 of the Equalities Act 2010 
to have due regard to the need to: 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Act. 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not. 

8.2 There are no protected characteristics affected by the decisions within this 
report.  

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 None required 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

 

Risk Mitigation Opportunities 

Property n/a  

Community Support 
If communication and 
information provision to local 
residents and businesses is 
poor there could be an impact 
on community activities, the 
development timetable and 
reputation for those involved. 

 
Regular Forum meetings to be 
held.  Good communication by 
the developers with 
Implementation Officer.   Close 
working liaison with parish 
councils and ward Members 

 

Page 13



  [KBF25] 
 

 

 

Timescales 
If the development does not 
progress in a timely fashion the 
Council’s ability to demonstrate 
a five year land supply will be 

comprised. 

 
The Council has limited control 
over the timetable for 
development which will be 
largely a commercial matter for 
the developer. The appointment 
of an Implementation Officer will  
help to reduce the scope for 
delays which might occur as a 
result of planning process and 
communication issues. Good 
dialogue between HCC, WCC 
and the developer will help 
ensure project milestones are 
coordinated and achieved 

 

Project capacity n/a  

Financial / VfM n/a  

Legal 
Implementation of the 
development in accordance with 
the planning permission and 
any planning obligation 
agreement. 

The appointment of an 
Implementation Officer will 
reduce the scope for delays and 
hence communication as to 
compliance with the planning 
process. 

Opportunity for a closer working 
relationship with Developers 

Innovation n/a  

Reputation n/a  

Other   

 
 
 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 Implementation Officer 

11.2 The Implementation Officer, Chris Hughes, is the first point of contact for 
queries relating to Kings Barton. Email chughes@winchester.gov.uk and 
telephone: 01962 848 057 (ext. 2057). 

11.3 Phase 1B 

11.4 All 223 dwellings at Phase 1B are now sold.  Discussions with Hampshire 
County Council Highways continue to allow the adoptable roads to be put 
forward for their twelve month maintenance period.   

Page 14



  [KBF25] 
 

 

 

 

11.5 Phase 1A 

11.6 The construction at Phase 1A continues – 14 homes have now been sold with 
several occupations taking place in time for last Christmas. 

Page 15



  [KBF25] 
 

 

 

 

11.7 Barton Meadows 

11.8 Barton Meadows is an area of former arable land covering 32 hectares north 
of Winchester.  It consists of two large meadows surrounded by areas of 
rough grassland, hedgerow and trees. The reserve was created during the 
planning process as part of the Kings Barton housing development to support 
displaced wildlife and to provide a recreation space.  The costs of the initial 
infrastructure works was borne by CALA as part of the s106 agreement and a 
commuted sum towards the costs of maintaining the site will be paid to the 
Council for its continued upkeep.   

11.9 The formerly arable land has now been converted into wildflower meadows 
and is starting to establish species including bird’s-foot-trefoil, meadow 
buttercup, oxeye daisy and knapweed. 

11.10 2019 is the third summer since re-seeding of the previous arable land, which 
is now a thriving wildflower meadow. Invertebrate life has recovered to 
astounding levels, as such surveys of birds and bats are also showing 
encouraging numbers. 

11.11 During the summer of 2019 Arcadian ecology consultancy conducted a 
number of surveys across the reserve. 

11.12 The surveys used three methodologies: Static Acoustic recording, Transect 
activity surveys and finally static detector recording. The surveys were 

Page 16



  [KBF25] 
 

 

 

targeted on key habitats where results were likely to offer a good 
representation of species present. 

11.13 12 of the 17 UK resident species have been recorded, a very significant 
result.  The UK Biodiversity Action Plan priority species recorded during 2019 
summer surveys were: 

1. Soprano pipistrelle, 

2. Noctule, 

3. Brown long-eared bat, 

4. Bechstein’s bat 

5. Barbastelle. 

11.14 The key areas of importance for bats across the site are listed below and 
should be managed to ensure bats as a European protected species and 
adequately accounted for: 

11.15 Area 1: Treeline. This is the boundary on the South side of the reserve and is 
of significant importance to bats foraging in the area. This should be 
considered of high importance and ecological advice sort, if any changes due 
to development are likely to impact the area, especially when considering 
lighting. No trees should be felled or worked on without prior survey. 

11.16 Area 2: Copse South. A key area for roosting, many trees are veteranised 
and would be favoured sites for bat roosting. Potential Roost Feature surveys 
have been conducted and future works of hazard trees will consider roost 
features carefully. 

11.17 Area 3: Copse North. Of similar importance to Area 2. 

11.18 Area 4: Reptile set aside. Likely an area of importance for foraging. 

11.19 Area 5: Hedgerow. Likely used as an area for foraging and navigation/transit 
through and across the site and landscape. 

11.20 The fact that the above areas are listed as of high importance should not 
detract anything from the rest of the site; which will be important to bats 
across the greater landscape particularly when considering Barton’s Meadow 
in the landscape and its proximity to Winnall Moors Nature Reserve and the 
wilder Itchen Valley, all important habitat for the local bat population. 

 
12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

12.1 None 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Page 17



  [KBF25] 
 

 

 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

KBF 24 – 5 November 2019 

Other Background Documents:- 

None 

APPENDICES: 

Barton Meadows Bat Survey 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 18



1 
 

  
 
 
 
 
  

Barton Meadows 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
  

Agatha Thompson 
November 2019 

KBF25
Appendix 1

Page 19



Publication Details  
 
This document should be cited as: Thompson, A. (2019). Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: 
Barton Meadows. Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust, Curdridge. 
 
Maps reproduced by the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust (Ordnance Survey 
licence no. 100015632) with the permission of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, Crown 
Copyright 2019. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Copyright and may lead to prosecution 
or civil proceedings. 
 
Front Cover: Barton Meadows by Agatha Thompson 
 
Published by: 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust 
Beechcroft House 
Vicarage Lane 
Curdridge 
Hampshire 
SO32 2DP 
 
A company Ltd by guarantee & registered in England No. 676313; Charity No. 201081. 
 
All assessments and recommendations provided are based on the information available to 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust (HIWWT), and HIWWT endeavours to ensure all 
advice is accurate and appropriate at the time of publication. However, it is the sole 
responsibility of the recipient to ensure that any actions they take are both legally and 
contractually compliant, and HIWWT does not accept responsibility or liability for any losses 
incurred or arising from the advice we provide. 
 
No part of this document may be reproduced without permission. Information contained in 
this report is intended for HIWWT use. Records of protected and notable species may be 
forwarded to relevant recording organisations with site names removed. All other information 
in this report should not be passed on to any third party without the express permission of 
HIWWT. For information on how to obtain further copies of this document and accompanying 
data please contact HIWWT: enquiries@hiwwt.org.uk.  
 
 

Document Control  
 

Version Author name  Date Signed off by   Date 

Draft Agatha Thompson 05/11/2019 Sarah Jackson 08/11/2019 

Final Agatha Thompson 12/11/2019 Sarah Jackson 12/11/2019 

Page 20

mailto:enquiries@hiwwt.org.uk


Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  3 

Table of Contents 
 

1. INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................ 4 

1.1. Site Description ....................................................................................................................... 4 

1.2. Aim of Survey ......................................................................................................................... 4 

1.3. Bat Ecology and Legislation ................................................................................................... 5 

2. METHODOLOGY ....................................................................................................... 7 

2.1. Acoustic Bat Activity Surveys ................................................................................................. 7 

2.1.1. Treeline Bat Passes Surveys ................................................................................................ 7 

2.1.2. Bat Transect Surveys ............................................................................................................ 7 

2.2. Static Detector Recordings ..................................................................................................... 7 

3. RESULTS .................................................................................................................. 8 

3.1. Treeline Bat Pass Surveys ..................................................................................................... 8 

3.1.1. Treeline Passes Survey – 27
th
 June 2019 ............................................................................ 8 

3.1.2. Treeline Passes Survey – 24
th
 July 2019 .............................................................................. 8 

3.1.3. Treeline Passes Survey – 27
th
 August 2019 ....................................................................... 10 

3.2. Transect Bat Activity Surveys ............................................................................................... 12 

3.2.1. Transect Activity Survey – 27
th
 June 2019 .......................................................................... 12 

3.2.2. Transect Activity Survey – 24
th
 July 2019 ........................................................................... 12 

3.2.3. Transect Activity Survey – 27
th
 August 2019 ...................................................................... 13 

3.3. Static Detector Recordings ................................................................................................... 14 

4. DISCUSSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................................ 17 

5. REFERENCES ......................................................................................................... 18 

 
 

MAPS 
 
Map 1: Site Location: Barton Meadows 

Map 2: Treeline Surveys: Surveyor and Detector Locations 

Map 3: Bat Transect Survey Route 

Map 4: Treeline Passes Survey – 27
th
 June 2019 

Map 5: Treeline Passes Survey – 24
th
 July 2019 

Map 6: Treeline Passes Survey – 27
th
 August 2019 

Map 7: Transect Activity Survey – 27
th
 June 2019 

Map 8:  Transect Activity Survey – 24
th
 July 2019 

Map 9: Transect Activity Survey – 27
th
 August 2019 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 21



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  4 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1. Site Description 

Barton Meadows is an area of former arable land covering 32 hectares north of Winchester, see 
Map 1. It consists of two large meadows surrounded by areas of rough grassland, hedgerow and 
trees. The reserve was created during the planning process as part of the Kings Barton housing 
development to support displaced wildlife and to provide a recreation space. The formerly arable 
land has now been converted into wildflower meadows and is starting to establish species 
including bird’s-foot-trefoil, meadow buttercup, oxeye daisy and knapweed.  
 

1.2. Aim of Survey 

To assess bat activity at Barton Meadows, focussing on the treeline on the southern boundary, 
connecting the west of the site to the residential area to the east. 
 

  

Page 22



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  5 

2. Ecology and Legislation 
 

2.1. Ecology 

In the UK there are 17 resident species of bat, ranging from the smallest and most widespread 
species, the common pipistrelle Pipistrellus pipistrellus to the rare woodland specialist, the 
Bechstein’s bat Myotis bechsteinii. 
 
Bats are nocturnal, emerging from their roosts from around sunset to 90 minutes after sunset.  
Bats typically initially forage around their roost before dispersing into the wider landscape.  The 
distance bats travel to feed can vary greatly, from brown long-eared bats Plecotus auritus that 
typically feed within 1 to 2km of their roost, to Leisler’s bat Nyctalus leisleri that can travel up to 
14km from the roost. 
 
Bats forage during the night with different species feeding on a range of invertebrates including 
midges, mosquitoes, moths and dung beetles.  Most bats use linear features in the landscape for 
orientation to foraging areas, such as lanes, hedgerows and rivers.   
 
Bats detect prey using echolocation.  Echolocation is the emission of ultrasonic frequencies 
either through the nose (horseshoe bats) or mouth (all other bat species).  Each species 
echolocates at a different frequency and calls can be modified depending on the habitat they are 
in.  
 
Bats catch prey by a number of methods including hawking (catching prey whilst in flight), 
gleaning, (picking prey off vegetation), stooping/ pouncing (steep dives to catch prey flying below 
them or on the ground) or trawling (picking prey from the surface of water).   
 
Bats may use feeding and night roosts whilst out foraging.  These provide somewhere to feed, 
shelter from the weather or rest temporarily.  Bats will return to the main roost before sunrise.   
 
Bats hibernate from November to March.  On emerging from hibernation, bats will start to feed on 
warmer evenings to recover weight lost during hibernation, before the females form maternity 
colonies in May.  Pups are born and reared during June and July, and the first pups will start to 
emerge from August, when the maternity colonies will disperse.  During September and October, 
mating roosts will form.  As the days get shorter and evenings cooler, bats will spend more time 
in torpor.  During torpor and hibernation, bats will still wake on warmer evenings to feed. 
 
The location of bat roosts varies depending on species and time of year, but can be found in 
buildings, bat boxes, trees and caves.  Hibernation roosts typically have a cool, constant 
temperature, and are humid, as bats are susceptible to desiccation whilst in hibernation. 
 

2.2. Status 

UK bats suffered severe declines in the second half of the twentieth century.  This has been due 
to loss of roosting locations and fragmentation of the habitat.  Bat species with more specialist 
habitat requirements, such as Bechstein’s bat which is only found in woodlands, are particularly 
vulnerable.   
 
Artificial lighting has also had an impact, as it is known to affect the behaviour of feeding bats and 
can also disrupt or sever important commuting routes, which can lead to desertion of roost sites.  
It has also been shown to be particularly harmful when present along river corridors, near 
woodland edges and near hedgerows (Institution of Lighting Professionals 2018). 
 
Projects such as the National Bat Monitoring Programme (NBMP) co-ordinated by the Bat 
Conservation Trust, are important in monitoring species trends.  The NBMP data for 2014 has 
indicated that some species, for example lesser horseshoe bat Rhinolophus hipposideros, 
common pipistrelle and soprano pipistrelle Pipistrellus pygmaeus are demonstrating increases in 
population. 
 
 

Page 23



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  6 

2.3. Legislation 

All bat species are listed on Schedule 5 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, and protected 
under Part 1 Section 9, meaning it is an offence to: 
 

 Intentionally or recklessly kill, injure or take a bat 

 Intentionally or recklessly damage or destroy any structure or place used for shelter or 
protection 

 Disturb a bat while it is occupying a structure or place which it uses for shelter or protection 

 Obstruct access to any structure or place used for shelter or protection 

 Possess or control any live or dead bat, or any part of, or anything derived from a bat 
 
In addition, all bat species are listed under Schedule 2 of the Conservation of Habitats & Species 
Regulations 2010, meaning it is an offence to: 
 

 Deliberately capture, injure or kill a bat 

 Deliberately disturb a bat; in particular that is likely to impair their ability:  
(i) To survive, to breed or reproduce, or to rear or nurture their young; or 
(ii)  In the case of hibernating or migratory species, to hibernate or migrate; 

 To affect significantly the local distribution or abundance of the species to which they belong 

 Damage or destroy a breeding site or resting place of a bat 

 Be in possession of, or to control a bat 

 Transport, sell, exchange, or offer for sale or exchange, any live or dead bat, or part of. 
 

All bat roosting sites receive legal protection even when bats are not present. 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 24



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  7 

3. METHODOLOGY  
 

3.1.  Acoustic Bat Activity Surveys 

Acoustic bat activity surveys were conducted monthly between June and August 2019 using 
either time expansion (Pettersson D240x) or frequency division (BatBox Duet) bat detectors with 
digital recorders. These recordings were subsequently analysed using Kaleidoscope Pro 
software, with bat calls being identified to species level where possible. 
 
Surveys were led by Sarah Jackson (MCIEEM, NE Bat Class Licence (level 2) Number 2015-
10695-CLS-CLS) and Agatha Thompson with assistance from Kate Gwynn of Arcadian Ecology 
& Consulting Ltd. A summary of survey details is shown in Table 1, whilst weather conditions 
during these surveys are described in Table 2. 
 
Table 1. Survey Details 

Date Surveyors Sunset Time 
Survey Start 

Time 
Survey End 

Time 

27/06/2019 
Sarah Jackson 
Agatha Thompson 

21:24 21:24 23:04 

24/07/2019 
Agatha Thompson 
Kate Gwynn 

21:04 21:04 23:04 

27/08/2019 
Sarah Jackson 
Agatha Thompson 

20:03 20:03 22:03 

 
Table 2. Weather conditions 

Date 
Temperature 
Range (°C) 

Cloud 
(Oktas) 

Wind 
(Beaufort) 

Rain General Conditions 

27/06/2019 15.0-16.2 0 5 None 
Hot, sunny day. Breezy 
and hazy evening. 

24/07/2019 19.0-20.4 1 2 None 
Very hot day, warm 
evening with a light 
breeze. 

27/08/2019 20.0-21.8 2 2 None 
Very hot day, warm and 
humid evening. 

 
3.1.1. Treeline Bat Passes Surveys 

Surveyors were positioned at two points along the treeline (Map 2) for 1 hour from sunset. All bat 
passes along or across the treeline were recorded along with a species identification, count of 
individuals and target note describing activity. Recordings of bat calls were made when 
identification of species was uncertain. 
 
3.1.2. Bat Transect Surveys 

A set transect was walked starting from 1 hour post-sunset and lasting for an hour, see Map 3. 
Listening points were established along the transect where surveyors stopped for 3 minutes to 
observe bat activity. All bat passes were noted along with species, count of individuals and a 
target note describing activity. Recordings of bat calls were made when identification of species 
was uncertain. 
 

3.2. Static Detector Recordings 

A Song Meter SM4BAT FS Bat Detector was set up at a set location along the main tree line, as 
shown in Map 2. The detector was in place for a period of 2 weeks from 27

th
 June to 12

th
 July 

2019, and was set to record all instances of bat activity during this period.  

Page 25



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  8 

4. RESULTS 
 

4.1. Treeline Bat Pass Surveys 

4.1.1. Treeline Passes Survey – 27
th

 June 2019 

Three species of bat were recorded and identified: common pipistrelle, soprano pipistrelle and 
serotine Eptesicus serotinus. Several bats were recorded using the treeline for foraging or 
commuting, heading both east and west. Survey results are shown in Table 3 and activity is 
represented visually on Map 4. 
 
Table 3. Treeline passes results for 27

th
 June 2019. Target notes correspond to arrows in Map 4. 

Time Species 
No. 
of 

Bats 
Activity 

Target 
Note 

21:50 Serotine 1 Flew through treeline east to west 1 

22:01 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

22:08 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

22:18 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

22:20 Pipistrelle species 1 Heard but not seen   

22:22 Common pipistrelle 1 Foraging for 1 minute 2 

22:24 Common pipistrelle 1 Foraging back and forth along treeline 3 

22:01 Soprano pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along south side of treeline, heading 
east 

4 

22:08 Common pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along south side of treeline, heading 
west 

5 

22:16 Soprano pipistrelle 1 
Looped around west end of treeline over 
arable field 

6 

22:17 Soprano pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along south side of treeline, heading 
east 

4 

22:18 Soprano pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along south side of treeline, heading 
west 

5 

22:20 Soprano pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along south side of treeline, heading 
west 

5 

22:22 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

22:22 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

22:23 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

22:23 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

22:24 Soprano pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along south side of treeline, heading 
east 

4 

 
4.1.2. Treeline Passes Survey – 24

th
 July 2019 

Three species of bat were recorded and identified: soprano pipistrelle, serotine and noctule 
Nyctalus noctula. A lot of foraging and commuting activity was recorded both along the treeline, 
mostly in an easterly direction, and in the south west corner of the site. Survey results are shown 
in Table 4 and activity is represented visually on Map 5. 
 
Table 4. Treeline passes results for 24

th
 July 2019. Target notes correspond to arrows in Map 5. 

Time Species 
No. 
of 

Bats 
Activity 

Target 
Note  

21:22 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1 
Seen but not heard: flying south over east end 
of treeline 

1 

21:34 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1 Heard but not seen   

21:39 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen   

Page 26



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  9 

21:39 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

21:40 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1 Heard but not seen   

21:41 Noctule 1 Foraging over field behind surveyor 2 

21:41 
Unidentified bat 
species 

2 
Commuting east along north side of treeline, 
then across field towards tree line on the west 
side of the field 

3 

21:41 Noctule 2 
Foraging over field behind surveyor, then 
foraging along north side of treeline, heading 
east 

4 

21:42 Serotine 1 Foraging over field behind surveyor 2 

21:42 Noctule 2 
Foraging over field behind surveyor, then 
foraging along north side of treeline, heading 
east 

4 

21:44 Noctule 1 
Foraging along north side of treeline, heading 
east 

4 

21:45 Noctule 1 
Foraging for 3 minutes over field behind 
surveyor 

2 

21:45 Noctule 1 
Foraging over field behind surveyor, then 
foraging along north side of treeline, heading 
east 

4 

21:46 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen   

21:47 Noctule 1 
Foraging over field behind surveyor, then 
foraging along north side of treeline, heading 
east 

2 then 
4 

21:49 Noctule 1 Foraging, heading north over treeline 5 

21:49 Noctule 1 
Travelling towards treeline then foraging at 
treeline 

  

21:51 Noctule 1     

21:51 Soprano pipistrelle 2 Flew through gap in treeline 6 

21:52 Noctule 2 
Foraging in corner of field behind surveyor for 5 
minutes 

2 

21:53 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1 
Foraging along north side of treeline, heading 
east 

4 

21:53 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1  Heard but not seen   

21:53 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1 
Foraging along north side of treeline, heading 
east 

4 

21:54 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1 Heard but not seen   

21:55 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1 Heard but not seen   

21:56 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen   

21:57 Noctule 1 Foraging in corner of field behind surveyor 2 

21:58 Noctule 1 Foraging in corner of field behind surveyor 2 

21:58 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1 
Foraging in a loop over field behind surveyor 
and up to north side of treeline 

2 

22:00 Noctule 1 
Foraging in corner of field behind surveyor for 3 
minutes 

2 

22:02 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1 
Foraging in a loop over field behind surveyor 
and up to north side of treeline 

2 

22:04 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1 
Foraging in a loop over field behind surveyor 
and up to north side of treeline 

2 

 

Page 27



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  10 

4.1.3. Treeline Passes Survey – 27
th

 August 2019 

Four species of bat were recorded and identified to species level: common pipistrelle, soprano 
pipistrelle, noctule and serotine. Two passes of Myotis bats were also recorded, but these could 
not be identified to species level. 
 
Table 5. Treeline pass results for 27

th
 August 2019. Target notes correspond to arrows in Map 6. 

Time Species 
No. 
of 

Bats 
Activity 

Target 
Note 

20:19 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen, commuting   

20:19 Common pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along north side of treeline, heading 
west 

1 

20:20 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen, commuting   

20:23 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

20:24 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

20:24 Common pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along north side of treeline, heading 
east then west 

2 

20:24 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen, commuting   

20:28 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

20:29 Pipistrelle species 1 Heard but not seen   

20:29 Common pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along north side of treeline, heading 
west 

1 

20:29 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen   

20:30 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Foraging across field heading west 3 

20:30 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen, commuting   

20:32 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen, foraging   

20:32 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen, foraging   

20:34 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen, commuting   

20:35 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen   

20:35 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

20:36 Common pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along south side of treeline, heading 
east 

4 

20:36 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

20:37 Common pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along north side of treeline, heading 
east 

5 

20:37 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen, foraging 6 

20:37 Soprano pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along south side of treeline, heading 
west 

  

20:38 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen, foraging   

20:38 Serotine 1 Commuting west across field 7 

20:40 Common pipistrelle 1 Foraging along north side of treeline 8 

20:40 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen, commuting   

20:40 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen, commuting   

20:42 Common pipistrelle 1 
Commuting along north side of treeline, 
heading west 

9 

20:43 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen, foraging   

20:44 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen, commuting   

Page 28



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  11 

20:45 Common pipistrelle 1 Foraging along south side of treeline 10 

20:45 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen   

20:46 Common pipistrelle 1 Foraging along south side of treeline 10 

20:46 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen   

20:47 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen   

20:47 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen   

20:48 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen   

20:49 Common pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along north side of treeline, heading 
east 

5 

20:51 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

20:51 Bat species 1 Heard but not seen   

20:52 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen   

20:52 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

20:53 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen   

20:54 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen   

20:54 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen, commuting   

20:55 Myotis species 1 Heard but not seen   

20:56 Myotis species 1 Foraging along south side of treeline 11 

20:57 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen   

20:57 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

20:58 Common pipistrelle 1 
Foraging along south side of treeline, heading 
west 

6 

20:59 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen   

21:00 Noctule 2 
Heard but not seen, foraging nearby for 3 
minutes 

  

21:00 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen   

21:02 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen   
 

  

Page 29



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  12 

4.2. Transect Bat Activity Surveys 

4.2.1. Transect Activity Survey – 27
th

 June 2019 

Two species of bat were recorded and identified: common pipistrelle and noctule. 
 
Table 6. Treeline pass results for 27

th
 June 2019. Target notes represented in Map 7. 

Time Species 
No. 
of 

Bats 
Activity 

Target 
Note 

22:54 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen 1 

22:59 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen 2 

23:01 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 3 

23:03 Common pipistrelle 1 Foraging at field edge 4 

 
4.2.2. Transect Activity Survey – 24

th
 July 2019 

Four species of bat were recorded and identified: common pipistrelle, soprano pipistrelle, noctule 
and serotine. 
 
Table 7. Treeline pass results for 24

th
 July 2019. Target notes represented in Map 8. 

Time Species 
No. 
of 

Bats 
Activity 

Target 
Note 

22:13 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen: foraging 
 

22:14 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen: foraging 1 

22:14 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen 1 

22:16 Common pipistrelle 2 Heard but not seen 1 

22:20 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 
 

22:22 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 
 

22:24 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 2 

22:27 Soprano pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 2 

22:27 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen 2 

22:29 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1 Heard but not seen 3 

22:29 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 3 

22:30 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 3 

22:32 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 3 

22:37 
Unidentified bat 
species 

1 Heard but not seen 4 

22:41 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 4 

22:42 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 5 

22:43 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 5 

22:44 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen 6 

22:45 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 6 

22:45 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen 6 

22:46 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 7 

22:51 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 8 

22:52 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 8 

22:56 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 9 

22:58 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 10 

Page 30



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  13 

23:00 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 10 

23:00 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 10 

23:03 Pipistrelle species 1 Heard but not seen 11 

23:09 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 12 

 
4.2.3. Transect Activity Survey – 27

th
 August 2019 

Three species of bat were recorded and identified to species level: common pipistrelle, serotine 
and noctule. 
 
Table 8. Treeline pass results for 27

th
 August 2019. Target notes represented in Map 9. 

Time Species 
No. 
of 

Bats 
Activity 

Target 
Note 

21:12 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 1 

21:14 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 2 

21:15 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 3 

21:17 Noctule 1 Heard but not seen 4 

21:18 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 5 

21:21 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 6 

21:25 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 7 

21:28 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 8 

21:30 Serotine 1 Foraging along treeline 9 

21:31 Serotine 1 Flying across corner of field 10 

21:34 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 11 

21:36 Serotine 1 Heard but not seen 12 

21:36 Common pipistrelle 1 Heard but not seen 12 
 

  

Page 31



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  14 

4.3. Static Detector Recordings 

A total of 4206 bat passes from 12 different species were recorded during the two week period. A 
summary of these results is shown in Table 9. 
 
Table 9. Summary of bat passes at Barton Meadows between 27

th
 June and 12

th
 July 2019 

Common Name Scientific Name Total Count 
Legal and Conservation 

Status 

Common pipistrelle Pipistrellus pipistrellus 2267  

Soprano pipistrelle Pipistrellus pygmaeus 560 UK BAP Priority species 

Noctule Nyctalus noctula 488 UK BAP Priority species 

Natterer's Myotis nattereri 418  

Serotine Eptesicus serotinus 349  

Daubenton's Myotis daubentonii 47  

Brown long-eared Plecotus auritus 35 UK BAP Priority species 

Leisler's Nyctalus leisleri 9  

Grey long-eared Plecotus austriacus 5  

Brandt's Myotis brandtii 3  

Bechstein's Myotis bechsteinii 2 
Habitats Directive Annex 
II 
UK BAP Priority species 

Barbastelle Barbastella barbastellus 1 
Habitats Directive Annex 
II 
UK BAP Priority species 

Unidentified Myotis species Myotis sp. 21  

 

 
Figure 1. Total number of bat passes from each species, common pipistrelle is shown on a 
different axis 
 
 
 

0 100 200 300 400 500 600

Soprano pipistrelle

Noctule

Natterer's bat

Serotine

Daubenton's bat

Brown long-eared

Leisler's bat

Grey long-eared

Brandt's bat

Bechstein's bat

Barbastelle

Myotis sp.

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500

Common pipistrelle

Total Number of Bat Passes 

Page 32



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  15 

The most abundant species recorded during the two week period was the common pipistrelle, 
followed by the soprano pipistrelle and noctule. Five UK BAP Priority species were recorded: 
soprano pipistrelle, noctule, brown long-eared bat, Bechstein’s bat and barbastelle, with the latter 
two also being Habitats Directive Annex II species. 
 

 
 

Figure 2. Total number of bat passes from all species across the two week period 
 
The base level of bat activity appears to be constant, with no fewer than 153 bat passes recorded 
on a single day, and the mean number of passes being 263. Total activity peaked twice, once on 
the 2

nd
 July and once on 6

th
 July. There is no clear explanation for this, as climatic conditions 

remained consistent throughout the survey period, with no rain or other extremes of weather 
recorded. 
 
Bat activity was highest in two windows as expected (see Figure 3), at dusk between 21:30 and 
23:00, and at dawn, 02:30 to 04:30. The species with the earliest peak activity were the common 
and soprano pipistrelles at 22:00, followed by serotine, noctule and natterer’s bat at 22:30. 
Natterer’s bat and common pipistrelle showed a second peak in activity at 03:00 and 03:30 
respecitvely, whilst the other three species were less active during this second window.

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

T
o

ta
l 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

B
a
t 

P
a
s
s
e
s

 

Page 33



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  16 

Figure 3. Number of bat passes from the five most active species at Barton meadows according to the times at which they were recorded 

P
age 34



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  17 

5. DISCUSSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Twelve bat species were recorded in close proximity to the treeline; five of these were UK BAP 
Priority species and two were Habitats Directive Annex II species. This indicates that the treeline 
provides an important feature for a wide variety of bat species within the landscape. During the 
treeline passes surveys, common pipistrelles, soprano pipistrelles, serotines, noctules and Myotis 
sp. were directly observed using the treeline, foraging and feeding on invertebrates around the 
vegetation. In addition, these species were also observed commuting along the tree line both in a 
west and an east direction. Bat foraging activity was also recorded around the perimeter of the 
site and along the main hedgerow which bisects the site splitting the west and east sides. 
 
It is therefore apparent that Barton Meadows is an important site for bats, containing a number of 
features which are regularly used by a wide variety of species. In particular, the main treeline 
which has been discussed in detail in this report should be considered a feature of vital 
importance to bats within the local landscape. 

 

  

Page 35



Assessment of Bat Activity 2019: Barton Meadows 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  18 

6. REFERENCES 
 

 Collins, J. (2016). Bat Surveys for Professional Ecologists: Good Practice Guidelines, 3
rd

 
edition. The Bat Conservation Trust, London. 

 Institution of Lighting Professionals (2018). Bats and Artificial Lighting in the UK: Bats and 
the Built Environment Series. Guidance Note 08/18. Institution of Lighting Professionals / Bat 
Conservation Trust  

 Russ, J. (2012). British Bat Calls. A guide to species identification. Pelagic Publishing, 
Exeter 

  

Page 36



 

 

MAPS 

 

Map 2: Bartley Heath Bat Transect 12th July 2017 

Page 37



P
age 38



P
age 39



Page 40



P
age 41



P
age 42



P
age 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Kings Barton Implementation Report and Verbal Update
	KBF 25 Appendix 1 Barton Meadow Bat Report 2019


